ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 24, 2009
8:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Carl Gatto
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 73
"An Act relating to honorary foreign consul |icense plates; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 73(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 123
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Statew de Suicide
Prevention Council; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 193

"An Act relating to representation by a legislator or
| egi sl ative enployee of another person in an admnistrative
hearing; relating to charity events under the Legislative Ethics
Act; requiring conpensation of public nenbers of the Select
Commttee on Legislative Ethics; exenpting certain information
from disclosure requirenments of the Legislative Ethics Act;
relating to the selection of alternate nmenbers and the
participation of menbers and alternate nenbers in fornal
proceedings of the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics and
its subconmttees; and defining 'constituent,' 'constituent
service,' 'legislative purpose,’ 'nonlegislative purpose,’ and
"private benefit' for the purposes of the Legislative Ethics
Act."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2009



- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 73

SHORT TITLE: HONORARY CONSUL LI CENSE PLATES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 12/ 09 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 12/ 09 (H <Bi ||l Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 24/ 09 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 123
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND SUl Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 11/ 09 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 09 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 24/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 193

SHORT TI TLE: LEGQ SLATI VE ETHI CS ACT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

03/ 18/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 09 (H) STA, JUD
03/ 24/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

NANCY MANLY, Staff

Representati ve Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TION  STATEMENT: I nt roduced HB 73 on behalf of
Representative Lynn, prine sponsor.

SUSIE HI LL KOKLI CH

Val dez, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska State
Firefighter's Association (ASFA) during the hearing on HB 73.

DAVE M LLER, President
Al aska State Firefighter's Associati on (ASFA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2009



Sitka, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 73.

VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 73.

M CHELLE VESTON, 2" Vice President

Board of Directors

Al aska Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the AFCA in support
of HB 73.

CRYSTAL KCENEMAN, St aff

Representati ve Anna Faircl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 123 on behal f of
Representati ve Faircl ough, prime sponsor.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Legi sl ative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
123.

L. DI ANE CASTO, WManager

Prevention and Early Intervention Section

Di vision of Behavioral Health

Departnent of Health & Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 123.

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

Representati ve John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 193 on behalf of
Representative Coghill, prime sponsor.

JOYCE ANDERSON, Ethics Comm ttee Adm ni strator

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics ("the Ethics Conmittee")
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2009



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 193.

TERRY L. THURBON, Chief Adm nistrative Law Judge

Ofice of Adm nistrative Hearings

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during the hearing on HB
193.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:09: 01 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:09 a.m Represent ati ves Seaton, Johnson
Wl son, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.

Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 73- HONOCRARY CONSUL LI CENSE PLATES

8:09: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 73, "An Act relating to honorary foreign consul license
pl ates; and providing for an effective date."

8: 09: 55 AM

NANCY MANLY, Staff, Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legi slature, introduced HB 73 on behalf of Representative Lynn
prime sponsor. She noted that included in the commttee packet
is a commttee substitute (CS) for HB 73, |abeled 26-LS0303\E
Luckhaupt, 3/12/09. She explained that Representative Harris

had requested the bill include license plates for fire fighters
and energency nedical service (EMS) providers. Probl ens
devel oped regarding the inclusion of the honorary foreign
consul, so that part of the bill was deleted. Currently, the

af orenenti oned CS includes only fire fighters and EMS provi ders.
8:10: 48 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 73, |abeled 26-LS0303\E, Luckhaupt,
3/12/09, as a work draft.

8:10: 59 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON objected, then renoved his objection.
There being no further objection, Version E was before the
comittee.

8:11: 33 AM

SUSIE HI LL KOKLICH, testifying on behalf of the Al aska State
Firefighter's Association (ASFA), called HB 73 a "feel good"
bill that would serve as a thank you to fire fighters and EMS
providers. She said this has been done for others in the state
and ASFA feels it is tinme for fire fighters and EMS providers in
the state of Alaska to be recogni zed, especially volunteers who
do not get paid for their service.

8:12: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
[ Section 2, beginning on line 14], which shows three different
fees schedul ed, and he said he would like to know the reasoning
behi nd the proposed fees.

M5. KOKLI CH said she could not respond, because she had no input
regardi ng those fees.

8:13: 50 AM

DAVE M LLER, President, Alaska State Firefighter's Association
(ASFA), testified in support of HB 73. He related that he is a

menber of the Sitka Volunteer Fire Departnent. He concurred
with Ms. Koklich that HB 73 is a great way in which to recognize
vol unt eers. He said it has been shown that "little bits of
recognition like this really help in recruitnment and retention
of volunteers for the future.” He reported that the nunber of
peopl e volunteering nationwide is low, and the proposed bill nay
help the effort to increase volunteer nunbers. He suggested
that [when special |icense plates are in place], people can note

who is volunteering and perhaps be inspired to do so thensel ves.
8:14: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated for the record that she was a
former energency nedical technician (EMI) who worked for an

anbul ance squad and thus would qualify to receive a special
license through HB 73.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2009



CHAIR LYNN said he drove an anbul ance in Tucson, Arizona, years
ago.

8:15:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON directed attention to page 2, line 3,
whi ch read:

(A) a fire departnent in this state and the
fire departnment is recognized as a fire departnent by
the state fire marshal; or

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if all volunteer fire departnents
are recogni zed by the fire marshal

MR. M LLER responded that there are approximately 250 recognized
fire departnents in the state of Al aska, and perhaps 15-20 that
are not currently registered. He said "we" are working on
getting those departnents registered.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said whether or not a person volunteers
for a recognized fire departnment or an unrecognized one, a
firefighter is still putting his/her life on the |ine. He
expl ai ned that he does not want people excluded from the bill
who are doing the same job, just because the fire marshal has
not recogni zed them

8:16: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concurred, but stated his concern that if
there is no classification, anyone could say he/she is a
vol unteer firefighter.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he does not know the answer, but
want ed to pose the question.

8:17:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked the commttee to consider changing
| anguage in the bill to address the fact that sone EMI prograns
are not affiliated with a fire departnent, but are recognized.
8:18:27 AM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),

Department of Admnistration, testified in support of HB 73.
She said the DW would like to know how it wll be able to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2009



verify an applicant's claimthat he/she is a fire fighter or EMS
provi der.

MR MLLER said he would be willing to work out a method by
which the DW could meke that identification. He suggested
forms could be created for the fire fighters' supervisors to
sign, for exanple.

8:19: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if any kind of law or statute
exi sts agai nst inpersonating a fire fighter.

CHAIR LYNN stated his assunption that such a |aw would apply to
the acquisition of a special license plate for those who have
earned a purple heart.

8:20:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG responded that there is a federal |aw
agai nst inpersonating the acquisition of a nedal, and he said he
would look in statute to determne the answer to Representative
Johnson's questi on.

8:21:02 AM

M5. KOKLICH stated that it is the intent of ASFA that any
i ndi vidual, whether active or retired, wanting a special |icense
would need to get «certification from his/her local fire

departnment and take that paperwork to the DW in order to be
i ssued the plate.

8:21: 26 AM

M5. KOKLICH, in regard to Representative Johnson's previous
question, offered her wunderstanding that many of the [fire]
departnments that are not recognized exist off the road system
and do not even have vehicles. She confirmed M. Mller's
previous remark that work is being done wth the smal
departnments to get themregistered with the state fire marshal's
of fice.

8:22:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 11.46.570, which read as
foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2009



Sec. 11.46.570. Crimnal inpersonation in the second
degr ee.

(a) A person commts the crine of <crimna
i npersonation in the second degree if the person

(1) assunes a false identity and does an act in
t he assuned character with intent to defraud, commt a
crime, or obtain a benefit to which the person is not
entitled; or

(2) pretends to be a representative of sone
person or organization and does an act in the
pretended capacity with intent to defraud, commt a
crinme, or obtain a benefit to which the person is not
entitled.

(b) Crimnal inpersonation in the second degree
is a class A m sdeneanor.

CHAIR LYNN stated his assunption that obtaining a special
| i cense would be a benefit.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he believes so. He cited another
applicable statute, AS 11.56.827, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 11.56.827. Inpersonating a public servant in the
first degree.

(a) A person conmits the crime of inpersonating a
public servant in the first degree if the person
violates AS 11.56.830 by pretending to be a peace
officer and purports to exercise the authority of a
peace officer in relation to another person.

(b) Inpersonating a public servant in the first
degree is a class C fel ony.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited a third related statute, AS
11.56. 830, which read as foll ows:

Sec. 11.56.830. Inpersonating a public servant in the
second degree.

(a) A person conmits the crime of inpersonating a
public servant in the second degree if the person
pretends to be a public servant and purports to
exercise the authority of a public servant in relation
t o anot her person.

(b) It is not a defense to a prosecution under
this section that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2009



(1) the office the defendant pretended to hold
did not in fact exist; or

(2) the defendant was in fact a public servant
different than the one the defendant pretended to be.

(c) This section does not apply to a peace
officer acting wthin the scope and authority of the
of ficer's enpl oynment.

(d) Inpersonating a public servant in the second
degree is a class B m sdeneanor.

8:25:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified for the record that if soneone
is driving a car with a special license plate, but is not the
recipient of said |icense plate, that person would not be guilty
of inpersonating a firefighter.

8:27:07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified his concern relates to the
obtaining of a license plate.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 11.81.900(44), which read:

(44) "peace officer” nmeans a public servant
vested by law with a duty to maintain public order or
to nake arrests, whether the duty extends to al
offenses or is limted to a specific class of offenses
or of fenders;

MR. MLLER, in response to Representative Guenberg, surm sed
that firefighters do not fall under that statute. In response
to Chair Lynn, he said a fire fighter can ask people to step
away, but cannot arrest them for not doing so.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed t hat paragraph (44) uses the word

or", and he asked if firefighters maintain public order.
MR. M LLER answered that they do.
8:29:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 2, lines 3-
4, of Version E, which read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 24, 2009



(A a fire departnment in this state and the
fire departnment is recognized as a fire departnent by
the state fire marshal; or

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked if [military] base fire
departnents are included in that category.

MR. M LLER answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that firefighters deployed to
I raq shoul d be consi dered.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered her understanding that there are
special license plates for veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG confirned that is correct, but said he
thinks firefighters stationed on a base should be allowed also

to obtain the special I|icense plates for firefighters. He
explained that the |anguage which concerns him is "in this
state", which he pointed out also occurs on [page 2, line 9].
8:31: 58 AM

MR MLLER said he thinks [including firefighters stationed
overseas] would be fine, as long as the chief of the base
department was willing to provide authorization.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that having one of these
licenses may be beneficial for firefighters, because that would
identify themin an energency situation.

CHAIR LYNN said anyone who is a firefighter in the state would

qual i fy. If sonmeone qualified for a plate, then subsequently
nmoved out of state, the plate would expire in normal course of
time. He stated that he sees no need to "drill down this deeply
into this."

8:34:18 AM

M5. BREWSTER explained that to apply for the special 1|icense
plate, an individual would show the DW a signed form proving
he/she is an active or former firefighter. She said if it is

the intent of the legislature to include those firefighters who
operate on a mlitary base, then the division would honor that.

8:35:35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 24, 2009



M CHELLE WESTON, 2" Vice President, Board of Directors, Al aska
Fire Chiefs Association (AFCA), testified on behalf of the AFCA
in support of HB 73. She characterized the proposed |egislation
as "doable." She said she thinks the association can work with
the DW and work on certification of individuals. Ms. Weston
said she thinks the mjority of Alaskan conmmunities have
certified vol unt eer firefighters and ener gency medi ca

technicians that "routinely leave their famlies and jobs day
and night to provide service to local communities.” M. Wston
stated, "W join with the other firefighter associations across
the state to urge your approval for this."

M5. WESTON noted that in other states, revenue from simlar
pl at es has been put back into vol unt eer firefighter
organi zations or into the Juvenile Firesetter Intervention
program She said she would like to see that happen.

8:36: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Chair Lynn, directed
attention to |anguage on page 2, [lines 27-29], which read as
fol |l ows:
t he annual estimated balance in the account that is in
excess of the cost of issuing special request plates
may be appropriated by the legislature for the
pur poses provided in AS 14. 43. 085.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG highlighted the related points found
t hr oughout AS 14. 43. 085.

8:38: 38 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

8:39:16 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative Seaton, offered her
understanding that Version E would allow anyone who wants a
commenorative plate to obtain one by paying the $100 fee, plus
the $35 fee found on [page 2], |ine 21.

8:41:14 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative Petersen, said the
cost to the state for nmaking each special plate is about $10,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2009



and the remaining fees collected would go into the general fund.
She noted that that is spelled out on page 2, lines 21-29.

8:42: 06 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative WIson, offered her
understanding that the design of the special plate would be the
same whether it was for an active or former fire fighter or EMS
provider, or was a commenorative plate.

8:42: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 73, Version 26-
LSO303\E, Luckhaupt, 3/12/09, out of comittee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There bei ng
no objection, CSHB 73(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 123- EXTEND SUlI Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of SB 35]
8:43:26 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 123, "An Act extending the termnation date of the
Statewide Suicide Prevention Council; and providing for an
effective date."

8:43: 41 AM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff, Representative Anna Fairclough, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 123 on behalf of Representative

Fai rcl ough, prinme sponsor. She said the proposed bill asks for
an extension of the sunset date from June 30, 2009, to June 30,
2013. In response to Chair Lynn, she offered her understanding

that the tine frame prior to the 2009 sunset date was four
years.

8:44:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a Legislative Budget and Audit
[ sunset review] was conduct ed.

M5. KOENEMAN sai d she does not know, but could find out.

8:45:38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2009



PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
Alaska State Legislature, confirnmed that the division did
conduct a sunset review on the [Statew de Suicide Prevention
Council]. As a result of the review, she reported, the division
recommends the four-year extension. Statute allows for up to an
ei ght-year extension. She said the [council] is having
difficulty appointing people. She related that after its prior
review, the division made a recomendation to the governor's

office that "they be nore tinely with their appointnents.” This
year, M. Davidson reported, the division encountered the sane
probl ens, and is concerned that the qualifications for

appointnment to the council are too narrow. Thus, the division
recommends that the legislature consider broadening the
nmenbership requirenents for the council. She expl ai ned that
when the restrictions about who exactly should be on the counci
get too narrow, the pool of people who are willing to serve is
reduced.

M5. DAVIDSON said the division also recomends that the four
menbers of the legislature who are appointed to the council be

nonvoting nenbers. She explained the intent is not to take
their voice away, but "they're having difficulty meeting their
guorum " She stated, "Basically, we look at it and they're

runni ng about 51-53 percent attendance at the neeting for this
15-person board, and it's difficult to get your business done
when you are fighting that quorum i ssue."”

VB. DAVI DSON, in response to Chair Lynn, offered her
understanding that the council neets a couple tinmes a year. She
cont i nued:

The statutes surrounding this [council] talk about it
as an advisory council to the governor and to the
| egislature, and it provides a list of areas that ...
they should be aware of. And what we found is that
the council's actually active in sone of those areas.
Rat her than naking a recomendation to the governor
[and] the legislature that sonmething be done, the
council's actually doing some of those things, which
is ... why we reconmended extension for the council.

8:48: 47 AM

M5. DAVIDSON, in response to Chair Lynn, said she does not know
where the board typically neets.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 24, 2009



8:49: 01 AM

M5. DAVIDSON, in response to a question from Representative
Pet er sen, confirmed that the audit found that over al

appoi ntment and attendance at neetings was running around 54
percent. As of Septenmber 30, [2008], there were three vacancies

in the 15-menber council, and the vacancies had existed for
quite awhile. She recommended ways in which the qualifications
could be broadened. For exanple, instead of requiring a

secondary school counselor, the requirenment could be sinply for
a counselor, or, if the inportant feature is secondary school
then perhaps the qualification could include a teacher, as well
as a counselor. By broadening the nenbership, M. Davidson
reiterated, the result would be a better pool of people.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN proffered another option would be to
allow a retired student counsel or.

CHAIR LYNN asked if anything is being done to "broaden that
out."

M5. DAVIDSON noted that the requirenments are in statute, thus
the | egislature woul d have to nake those changes.

8:51: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks that along with the issue

of the sunset date, the sponsor would probably be "l ooking at
that in conjunction with the comttee.”

8:51:56 AM

M5. KOENEMAN rel ayed that the sponsor had originally introduced
HB 123 as a conpanion bill to SB 35, which is sponsored by
Senat or Davi s. She said those involved in crafting SB 35 are
considering the optinmm conposition of the council. She said
t he sponsor of HB 123 would be willing to consider inproving the
conposition of the council, but would not want to risk a delay

t hat woul d cause the expiration of the council.
8:53: 10 AM
M5. KCENEMAN, in response to Representative G uenberg, offered

her understanding that SB 35 is currently sitting in the Senate
Fi nance Comm ttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Koeneman if she thinks it
woul d be efficient to "put sonmething in so we can start noving
sonet hing over here, with the expectation they'll neet up."

M5. KCENEMAN responded that she does not know whether that would
hel p, and she reiterated that the sponsor's main concern is that
t he council does not sunset.

CHAIR LYNN said he thinks the commttee should limt the focus
of HB 123 on the termnation date, and independently check on
[SB 35] to "see what's happening.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said statute requires the audit of
agencies before their sunset date, so that the legislature can
review the audits to discover reconmended inprovenents. If the
i nprovenents are not nade at that tine, he said, there will not
be a chance to consider them again until just before the next
sunset date. Therefore, if there are provisions in SB 35 which
incorporate the Legislative Budget and Audit recomendations,
the House should mrror those provisions in its own bill, he
opi ned.

8:55:30 AM

CHAIR LYNN remarked that Representative Seaton's point is well
made. He said he is wondering whether the committee ought to
hold HB 123 until it finds out [what the Senate is doing with SB
35] .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified his concern is that if the House
were to send legislation over to the Senate that is totally
different from SB 35, that would result in time-consum ng
conflict. He suggested that incorporating the changes
recommended in the audit woul d speed up the process.

8:56:34 AM

M5. KOENEMAN, in response to Chair Lynn, reiterated that
al t hough the sponsor would be willing to incorporate the audit
recommendati ons, her greatest concern is to see that the counci
is not allowed to sunset. She noted that April 16 is the |ast
day to hear bills. In response to Chair Lynn, she offered her
understanding that the reconmendations of the audit are
i ncorporated in SB 35.

8:57:24 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2009



M5. DAVI DSON added her understanding that the Statew de Suicide
Prevention Counci | met in February and passed al ong
recommendat i ons to Senat or Davi s' of fice, and t hose
recommendati ons were incorporated into [ SB 35].

8:57:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON recomended that the commttee create a
commttee substitute (CS) that mrrors the wording [ SB 35], but
that it does so as quickly as possible.

8:58:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the conmttee needs to
obtain a copy of the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmittee's
sunset review audit and consider the recomendations directed
toward i nproving the council.

8:59:28 AM

L. DIANE CASTO Manager, Prevention and Early Intervention
Section, Division of Behavioral Health, Departnent of Health &
Social Services, offered a brief history of the Statew de
Sui ci de Prevention Council. She stated that as of July 1, the
council has sat within the Division of Behavioral Health. Prior
to that, the council sat in the Ofice of the Conm ssioner. The
commi ssioner nmade the decision to nove the council into the
Division of Behavioral Health to place it closer to where
sui cide prevention activities are happening at the state |evel.
Ms. Casto noted that she and one other person are currently
staff to the council, in addition to their other activities.

M5. CASTO said the departnent supports HB 123. It is well-known
that suicide is a huge issue for the state, and the departnent
is working diligently towards a drop in the suicide rate, she
report ed. There are a nunmber of grant progranms being run in
conmmunities; the $1.5 Garrett Lee Smth Youth Suicide Prevention
Grant - a federal grant - has just been awarded the departnent.
Ms. Casto stated, "W feel that right now things are really
starting to pull together, and the council is a huge asset for
Al aska, and it provides guidance and direction to the
depart nent.

9:01: 31 AM

M5. CASTO said following the audit, the council held a neeting
February 4-5, during which it held a discussion related to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 24, 2009



audit and the recommendations therein. She indicated that the
council canme up with ideas for "tweaking the nenbership.” She
offered the follow ng exanple: "an enployee from a secondary
school system such as but limted to a teacher, admnistrator,
counsel or, nurse, or other school personnel.” She said wording
very simlar to that was incorporated into SB 35. An additional
recommended change was to add a public nmenber to the council.

MS. CASTO stated support of the current commttee substitute for

SB 35. Furthernore, she reported that currently all seats on
the council are filled at this tine. She stated, "It's the
first time in a long time that we've had a full council, so
we're very excited about that." Ms. Casto relayed that one

addi tional question that cane up after reconmmendations were nade
for the conmttee substitute related to adding the public
menber, which would give the council an even nunber of nenbers.
She said often an odd nunber of people is desired in order to
break ties; however, she told the comrittee that the council is
not contentious and works well together. A second public nmenber
could be added to address the issue; however, Ms. Casto said the
council felt that within its existing budget it could absorb the
cost of one additional nenber, but not two. Anot her option
would be to follow Robert's Rules of Order and ensure that the
chair does not vote "unless there is atie or to create atie."

9:04: 55 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked Ms. Casto what her opinion is regarding the
idea to align HB 193 with SB 35.

9:05:11 AM

M5. CASTO replied, "W support that."

9: 05: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted, "One of the other issues that was
brought up was ... having the legislative nenbers be non-
voting." He asked if the council considered that natter.

M5. CASTO replied that the council did consider that matter, and
it would like to continue to have four legislative nenbers on
the council, but in nore of an advisory role. She expl ai ned
that it is difficult for legislators to come to a two-day
meeting; their attendance has been "spotty," she noted.
Regarding the prior question regarding how often and where the
council neets, M. Casto relayed that the council neets

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2009



gquarterly - once in Juneau during the session, once in
Anchorage, and twice in outlying areas.

CHAIR LYNN questioned the potential for conflict of interest
when a |egislative nmenber of the council hears the sanme issue
before the | egislature.

M5. CASTO said she is not sure there would be a conflict, but it
woul d depend upon the issue. She said, "W feel that being in
an advisory role gives us that advantage of having

| egislators participate and be active in the conversation in
hel pi ng make decisions ...."

9:07:40 AM

M5. CASTO, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said all council nenbers knew about today's hearing
but she does not think any of them are here.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG expressed his hope that the next tine

the issue is revisited, the chair of the council could [be
present].

M5. CASTO, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said the Statewi de Suicide Prevention Council is not

one that is required to get federal funds.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked if the council, in its
del i berati ons, took up any other | egislative reform or
amendnents, or any other issues.

M5. CASTO explained that when the council was noved into the
Di vision of Behavioral Health, there was no opportunity to hire
a new coordinator, because decisions needed to be nmade about

f undi ng. Wen the position was in the Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, one person served nultiple jobs and "did a job
share with a nunber of different councils.”™ M. Casto indicated

that the idea is to ensure that the council has the opportunity
to determine who its staff is.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Has that problem been cured?"
M5. CASTO answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "Ckay, so, there's nothing else
ot her than the make-up of the council.™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2009



MS. CASTO confirmed that is correct.
9:10: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said having served on a simlar body
many years ago, he is interested to see how this works and what

the legislature should be doing. He said he is glad the
[council] w Il be addressing this issue, and he said he would
wel conme any further advice fromthe council itself.

CHAIR LYNN asked Ms. Koeneman if she would "assist in putting
this together." He stated his intent not only to not let the
council expire, but also to do everything possible "in getting
it in one package."

9:11: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that copies of the Legislative
Budget & Audit sunset review and t he departnent’'s
recomrendati ons be distributed.

9:12: 01 AM

CHAI R LYNN said he would hold public testinony open.

[HB 123 was hel d over.]

HB 193- LEGQ SLATI VE ETH CS ACT

9:12:17 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the l|last order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 193, "An Act relating to representation by a |egislator
or legislative enployee of another person in an admnistrative
hearing; relating to charity events under the Legislative Ethics
Act; requiring conpensation of public nenbers of the Select
Commttee on Legislative Ethics; exenpting certain information
from disclosure requirements of the Legislative Ethics Act;

relating to the selection of alternate nenbers and the
participation of nmenbers and alternate nmenbers in forna

proceedings of the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics and
its subcommittees; and defining 'constituent,' 'constituent
service,' 'legislative purpose,' 'nonlegislative purpose,' and
"private benefit' for the purposes of the Legislative Ethics
Act . "

9:12: 29 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2009



RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff, Representative John Coghill, Alaska State

Legislature, Introduced HB 193 on behalf of Representative
Coghill, prinme sponsor. She said the bill addresses issues
within ethics law which the Select Committee on Legislative
Ethics thinks need to be refined. She suggested giving a

sectional analysis for the commttee.

9:13:51 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS), Version 26-LS0656\S, Wayne, 3/23/09, as a work
draft.

9:13: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

9:14: 08 AM

M5. MOSS noted that definitions are found on page 7 of both the
original bill and Version S. One definition that has been
changed is that of constituent. The original bill limted the
definition of constituent as sonmeone living in a candidate's
el ection district. The definition on page 7, lines 24-25, of

Version S, read:

(17) "constituent” neans a natural person to
whom a | egislator owes a duty of representation under
the Constitution of the State of Al aska;

M5. MOSS explained that the term constituent is used in ethics
laws related to controlling canpaign. She said, "By defining
constituent this broadly in this section of the law, we're
causi ng ot her problens."

CHAI R LYNN asked, "You nean in the original bill?"

M5. MOSS answered, "In both bills." She stated, "In our
di scussions this norning, quite frankly, 1 think what we're
| ooking at is defining the word ' person'."

9:15: 36 AM

JOYCE ANDERSQN, Ethics Committee Administrator, Select Conmttee

on Legislative Ethics ("the Ethics Conmittee"), cited the
definition of "person” in AS 01.10.060, which read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2009



Sec. 01.10. 060. Definitions.

(a) In the laws of the state, unless the context

ot herwi se requires,

(8) "person" includes a corporation, conpany,
partnership, firm association, organization, business

trust, or society, as well as a natural person;

M5. ANDERSON said the definition of person is "very broad."

9:16: 13 AM

M5. MOSS said [the Ethics Commttee] is having problenms with AS

24.60.030(a)(2), which read as foll ows:

(2) wuse public funds, facilities, equipnent,
services, or another governnment asset or resource for

a nonlegislative purpose, for involvenment in

or

support of or opposition to partisan political

activity, or for the private benefit of either

| egi sl ator, |egislative enployee, or another person;

t he

M5. MOSS said "person" should be defined, not "constituent".
She nmentioned [AS 24.60.030(a)(2)(J)], which states

par agraph (2) does not prohibit:

(J) a legislator from sending any comunication
in the form of a newsletter to the legislator's
constituents, except a communi cat i on expressly
advocating the election or defeat of a candidate or a
newsletter or material in a newsletter that is clearly
only for the private benefit of a legislator or a

| egi sl ati ve enpl oyee; or
M5. MOSS conti nued:

So, if you define constituents broadly, then

what

you're saying is a legislator could send a newsletter
statewde, and it could be within a w ndow period very

close to an el ection. It could be a House nenber

who

is running for a Senate seat that sends his newsletter
to two House districts, which under current |aw would

be unethical. So, in using the word constituent,
there could be a | ot of unintended consequences.

MR. MOSS recommended either that the definition under
Version S, text provided previously] be elimnated or

(17)
t hat

t hat

[ of
t he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2009



definition of " per son” in [AS 01.10.060, t ext provi ded
previ ously] be reinserted.

9:18:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested one way to address the issue
would be to delete the word "natural™ from paragraph (17) [text
provi ded previously]. He stated that sone people have concerns
about legislators sending newsletters outside their districts,
but Representative Guenberg said he does not share that
concern. He said he thinks a legislator has a duty to exercise

free speech. He posited that people are interested in what
| egi sl ators do, and he t hi nks | egi sl ators have t he
responsibility to keep the people in the state inforned. He

clarified that legislators do not solely represent natural
peopl e, but al so represent groups of people.

M5. MOSS said 24.60.030(a)(2) addresses the use of public funds

and facilities. The word constituent is not wused in that
subsection, she said. The term used is "another person". She
clarified, "So, ny concern is, we're defining "constituent”, but

t he problemexists in the word "person”
9:22:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for clarification.
9:22:49 AM

CHAIR LYNN referred to the words "owes a duty of representation”
- in paragraph (17) - and said he does not represent the
Shriners or Providence [Hospital], for exanple.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON related that although she is not the
Representative for those living on Prince of Wales Island, she
is the Representative closest in proximty; therefore, she

receives calls from people who live on the island, at which
poi nt she does not tell them they are not her constituents, but
rather helps them if she can. She said she thinks it is

inmportant to ensure that it is okay for legislators to do that.
MS. MOSS responded as foll ows:
| think she brings up a good point, and "constituent”
certainly could be defined as a person, as it is here.

| just think we need to clarify that a person, in this
subsection, is defined as it is in Title |

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2009



9:24:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renarked that by defining the term
consti tuent broadl y, bi g oi | conpani es woul d be hi s
constituents, yet wunder canpaign law, contributions from oi
conpanies are not allowed. He said he wants to ensure "what
ram fications this goes through,” and he recommended | ooking at
where the term constituent is wused throughout all ethics
| egi sl ati on and APOC regul ati ons.

9:25: 25 AM
M5. MOSS responded, "This ... actually is a definition in this
chapter. That's how it is read in Section 24.60.990,

definitions (a); in this chapter these words are defined in this
manner . "

9: 25: 47 AM

M5. ANDERSON proffered that there are two sections in ethics
statute that use the word "constituent”. One is the statute to
which Ms. Mss referred, 24.60.030(a)(2)(j), which states that a
| egislator or legislative enployee may not "use public funds,
facilities, equipnment, services, or another governnent asset or
resource for a nonlegislative purpose, for involvenent in or
support of or opposition to partisan political activity, or for
the private benefit of either the legislator, legislative
enpl oyee, or another person”. Listed under that which paragraph
(2) does not prohibit 1is subparagraph (J), which read as
fol |l ows:

(J) a legislator from sending any communication
in the form of a newsletter to the legislator's
constituents, except a comuni cat i on expressly
advocating the election or defeat of a candidate or a
newsl etter or material in a newsletter that is clearly
only for the private benefit of a legislator or a
| egi sl ative enpl oyee;

M5. ANDERSON said the other instance where "constituent” appears
in ethics statute is in AS 24.60.030(e), which states that a
| egislator "may not directly, or by authorizing another to act
on the legislator's behal f":

(2) state or inply that the legislator wll
perform or refrain from performng a | awf ul

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 24, 2009



constituent service as a result of a person's decision
to provide or not provide a political contribution,
donate or not donate to a cause favored by the
| egislator, or provide or not provide a thing of
val ue;

9:27:48 AM

M5. MOSS noved on to the next definition on page 7, |lines 26-28,
of Version S, which read as foll ows:

(18) "constituent service" neans assistance,
i ncl udi ng representation ot her t han | egal
representation and advice other than |egal advice,
that is provided by a legislator or a legislator's
staff to a constituent;

M5. MOSS explained that the language in the original bill
version stipulated that the constituent would be "a constituent
of the legislator", but that the words "of the legislator” were
deleted in the crafting of Version S. She said, "As long as it
is a legislative purpose, it doesn't mtter where the
constituent lives."

9:28:59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nterpreted t he definitions of
"constituent” and "constituent service" - especially if the word

"natural” were to be renmoved - to nmean that anybody who wants a
| egislator to work on an issue is that legislator's constituent.

M5. MOSS responded that that is the intent of the bill sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned if that would nean any person -
not limted to those in Al aska.

M5. MOSS answered, "Yes, as long as ... the benefit to that
person or corporation is no greater than the benefit of anyone
in that same class.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i ndi cated that the changes pointed out and
di scussed thus far woul d nake the | anguage very broad.

9:32: 05 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it is inportant that
| egislators are allowed to exercise their responsibilities, as
long as it's done honestly.

9:33:16 AM

M5. MOSS tal ked about |egislative purpose and the role of the
Ethics Commttee to determ ne whether or not "you' ve gone too
far."

9:33: 51 AM

M5. ANDERSON said when she speaks to legislative offices about
constituent service, she tells themthat they are the people who
hel p constituents through a process - not to do the process for
t hem She indicated that the |anguage discussed thus far would
allow legislators to "work on sone of those other issues,” while
still putting constraints on legislative office, based on other
parts of the ethics code.

9:35: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he |ikes the |anguage of paragraph
(17) on page 7, wthout the word "natural". He tal ked about
California law, the Constitution of the United States, and a
term called "long-arm statute." He said the aforenentioned
| anguage would allow legislators to represent folks "to the
extent permtted under the state constitution.” He opined that

that is a great idea, because it preserves the separation of
powers and allows |egislators to do their work.

M5. MOSS continued to the next definition, the term "l egislative
pur pose", which appears on page 7, lines 29-30, in Version S,
and read as foll ows:

(19) "legislative purpose" neans a goal of a
| egi slative action or a constituent service;

M5. MOSS noted that the original bill specifies that the
constituent service would be one "that is a primary goal or,
when neasured against other goals of the legislative action or
constituent service, is a substantial goal". She said the bil
sponsor feels that the | anguage in Version S is enough.

M5. MOSS said the definition of "private benefit" has been
changed in Version Sto read as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 24, 2009



(21) "private benefit" means a financial
benefit to a person as a result of a legislative,
admnistrative, or political action of which financial
benefit to that person in particular is a substantial
goal and that is greater than the financial benefit of
the legislative, admnistrative, or political action
to a substantial class of persons to which the person

belongs by law, choice, legal entitlenent, |egal
privil ege, pr of essi on, occupati on, i ndustry, or
regi on.

M5. MOSS explained that this |anguage follows the prem se that
the benefit "does not exceed the sane benefit that would be
applied to any other person in that «class.” Consti t uent
services, she said, usually take place when sonething wong has
happened within an agency that has cost the constituent a right
or entitlenent, and it is the legislator's duty to attenpt to
correct that wong. She of fered exanples. Ms. Moss nentioned
House Bill 53 - the Famly R ghts Act - which she said was
brought about as a result of 1issues brought to legislators
regarding Child In Need of Ad laws that needed to be fixed.
She concluded, "If we're taking what goes wong wth government
and making it right through legislation, then what we' re doing
with that constituent definitely has a | egislative purpose.”

9:39: 27 AM

MS. ANDERSON expressed concern about the word "financial™ in the
definition of "private benefit". She explained that there is
already a single definition for the follow ng: "anyt hi ng of
value"; "benefit"; and "thing of value". She continued as
fol |l ows:

That tal ks about whether it's tangible or intangible,
and it also says "that could reasonably be considered
to be a material advantage or material worth, use, or
service to the person to whom it is conferred.” And
the terns are intended to be interpreted broadly and
enconpass all matters that the recipient mght find
sufficiently desirable to do sonething in exchange
for.

M5. ANDERSON clarified that she is concerned there could be a
conflict between the definition that is being proposed for
"private benefit" and the definition that already exists for
"benefit". She suggested that the word "financial" be renoved
[from page 2, lines 2, 3, and 4], because then the |anguage

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2009



“private benefit" would be a further qualification based on the
est abl i shed neani ng of "benefit."

M5. MOSS said the sponsor would have no problem with that
reconmendati on.

9:41: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON interpreted the conbined | anguage of (18)
and (19) to nean "the goal of a constituent or corporation that
has any interest in the state of Alaska." He added, "I nean we
mght as well throw the whole thing out, because we're saying
that you can basically do anything for anybody, and not only
what you do, but as long as it acconplishes their goal."

9:43: 05 AM

M5. MOSS responded that that is not the intent at all. She
reiterated that the benefit for one cannot be nore than for any
person in that class. She said this does not nean that a

| egislator can solicit a contract for a person or corporation;
it means if sonething goes array with state governnment that
results in personal loss - that is a |egislative purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d he understands the intent but is just
| ooking at the wording. He clarified that: t he proposed
| anguage under paragraph (19) defines "legislative purpose” as
the goal of constituent service; the proposed |anguage under
paragraph (18) defines "constituent service" as including
representation provided by the legislature or legislative staff
to a constituent; and "constituent"” has been defined as anyone
who has any interest in anything to do with the state of Al aska.
He added, "And it's their goal - not the actual service
provided." He said he interprets that to nean the goal of any
constituent.

9:44: 39 AM

M5. MOSS replied that the goal of any one constituent is not the
goal of a <class of people. She said she thinks what
Representative Seaton is describing is an independent goal of a
person versus the goal that could be shared by a class of
peopl e.

9:45: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2009



M5. ANDERSON concurred with Representative Seaton's remark that
"it's a goal of constituent service." She suggested that the
proposed | anguage could be changed to: "l egi slative purpose
nmeans a goal of legislative action or providing constituent
service," because constituent service is not really a goal, but
sonet hing to be provided.

9:45: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the wording needs to be
clarified.

MS. ANDERSON concurr ed.
9:46: 07 AM

M5. MOSS cited the definition of |egislative action, which read
as foll ows:

a conduct related to the developnent, drafting,
consi derati on, sponsor shi p, enact nent or def eat
support or opposition to or of a law, anendnent,
resol ution, report, nom nati on, or other mat t er

affected by | egislative action or inaction.
9:47:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for clarification of M. Anderson's
| at est recommendati on.

M5. ANDERSON said she recommends changing the |anguage in
par agraph (19), on page 7, lines 29-30 [text provided
previously], to read as foll ows:

(19) "legislative purpose"” neans a goal of a
| egi sl ative action or providing constituent service;

M5. ANDERSON said she agrees with Representative Seaton that
i nstead of saying |egislative purpose is a goal of a constituent
service, the |anguage should convey that |egislative action is a
goal of legislative action or constituent service, which would
clarify that |egislative purpose includes constituent service,
whi ch has not occurred in statute before.

MS. MOSS said that makes sense.

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:48: 13 AMto 9:50:19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 24, 2009



9:50: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGCRUENBERG recommended that a subconmmttee be
formed to address HB 193.

CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.
9:51: 05 AM

CHAIR LYNN appointed Vice Chair Seat on, Representative
Gruenberg, and Representative Johnson to a subcommttee.

9:52:23 AM

M5. MOSS returned to the sectional analysis of HB 193. She
directed attention to Section 1 of Version S, [which would anend
AS 24.60.030(i)]. M. Mss reviewed that once a constituent has
filed an official appeal and has asked for an admnistrative
hearing, the legislator and |l egislative staff back away from the
i ssue. The proposed change to that rule would be "unless the
| egislator or legislative enployee is representing another
person in the <case for conpensation and subject to AS
24.60. 100".

9:53:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that it is possible that
sonmebody could be providing representation, for exanple, for an
accountant. He told Ms. Mbss he thinks the | anguage is great.

9:54: 03 AM

M5. MOSS noved on to Section 2 of Version S, [which would anmend
AS 24.60.080(a)]. Ms. Moss noted that Section 2 addresses
gifts. She said the proposed change would be in regard to
charitable events and tickets. She indicated that [the Ethics
Commttee] would |like to allow the gift of a ticket for a

charitable event, but with alimt on that gift of $250.

M5. MOSS addressed Section 3 of Version S, [which would anend AS
24.60.080(c)]. She said the proposed change is on page 5,
[lines 3-5], and would allow a legislator or legislative
enpl oyee to accept a ticket to a charity event worth over $250
froma person who is not a |obbyist, an imediate famly nenber
of a | obbyist, or acting on behalf of |obbyist. Section 4, she
explained would [amend AS 24.60.080(d)] to require the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 24, 2009



| egislator or legislative enployee who receives the ticket to
the charity event worth over $250 to disclose the receipt of
that gift.

M5. MOSS said Section 5 would [anend AS 24.60.105] by adding
| anguage that would clarify that if a disclosure is against any
|law - federal or state - then that disclosure would not have to
happen.

M5. ANDERSON of f ered an exanpl e.
9: 55: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he strongly supports that
| anguage, because it would protect the right to privacy for
people involved in famly |aw

9:56: 03 AM

M5. MOSS, in response to a question from Representative W] son
regarding the proposed change in Section 3, clarified that any
ticket received to a charity event that was valued under $250
woul d not have to be report ed.

M5. MOSS continued to Section 6, which she said would [anmend AS
24.60.130(f) by inplenenting a $150 a day conpensation for
public nenbers of the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics
while they are in neetings.

M5. ANDERSON, in response to a question from Representative
Seaton, regarding Section 5, explained that a person refraining
from making a disclosure because doing so would violate the
United State Constitution, the Constitution of the State of
Al aska, or other state or federal law, would give the Ethics
Commttee, in witing, the reason he/she wll not nake the
di sclosure. The committee would "l ook for the law' to determ ne
that the issue is confidential by some other statute.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Anderson to provide the House
State Affairs St andi ng Commttee with list of known
confidentialities, such as real estate disclosures, so that the
commttee knows the paraneters.

9:58: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his understanding that the
Constitution of the State of Alaska guarantees everyone the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 24, 2009



right to privacy; therefore, he asked if that would nmean a
person could choose to hold private anythi ng he/ she w shed.

M5. MOSS said she would have to ask Legislative Legal and
Research Services for the answer to that question, but said her
intuition is that the answer is no. She said information that
is by law confidential would remain confidential.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said a person's salary is not made
confidential by law, but rather is confidential through the
policy of a conpany. However, he said he thinks that would be
covered under the Constitution of the State of Alaska as a
privacy issue.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG proffered that there are a series of

cases on that issue, and the suprenme court, in at |east three
cases, has "delineated the contours of disclosure in these
ci rcunst ances. " He added, "It's not just your salary's

confidential; they haven't gone that far."
9:59:45 AM

M5. MOSS concl uded the sectional analysis, by discussing Section
7, [which would amend AS 24.60.130(n)]. She noted that Section
7 proposes that an alternate public nenber be allowed on the
Ethics Comm ttee. Furthernore, it would provide that if an
alternate were to start a proceeding, he/she would finish the
pr oceedi ng.

10: 00: 26 AM

CHAIR LYNN appointed Representative Seaton as chair of the
subcommi tt ee.

10: 01: 06 AM

TERRY L. THURBON, Chief Admnistrative Law Judge, Ofice of
Adm ni strative Hearings, Departnent of Administration, stated
that her coments are entirely confined to Section 1 of the

bill. She said the goal of the bill, to nake a brighter line to
limt inappropriate contacts, is |audable. However, the way the
bill and commttee substitute were originally drafted does not

preserve two inportant things: one, the ability of a |egislator
or legislative enployee to participate in an admnistrative
adjudication as a party or a witness wthout running afoul of
the ethics laws; and, two, the solution to inadvertent ex parte
contacts, which is in the subparagraph to the original

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 24, 2009



provi sion, which was put into law initially when the Ofice of
Adm ni strative Hearing was created in 2004.

JUDGE THURBON  said she has di scussed concerns with
Representative Seaton and Ms. Moss at nuch greater |ength than
with Ms. Anderson, and she offered her understanding that there
may be an amendnent forthcom ng, perhaps during the bill's
heari ng before the House Judiciary Standing Conm ttee or perhaps
as a result of the neeting of the newly appointed subcomm ttee.

CHAI R LYNN suggested the issues brought forth by Judge Thurbon
coul d be addressed in the subcomm ttee.

[ REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG acknow edged yes.

JUDGE THURBON stated, "Wth that in mnd, | don't think |I need
to add anything el se.”

[HB 193 was held over, wth the objection to the proposed
commttee substitute (CS), Version 26-LS0656\S, Wayne, 3/23/09,
| eft pending.]

10: 02: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN di scussed the upcom ng cal endar.

10: 03: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated he wuld be announcing a
subcommittee neeting tinme.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r equested that the announcenent be nade
on the House fl oor.

10: 04: 22 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at 10:04
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 24, 2009



